SIMEX TECHNOLOGIES INC Form 10KSB November 20, 2007

## **UNITED STATES**

### SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D. C. 20549

### FORM 10-KSB

| (Mark One)   |
|--|
| [X] ANNUAL REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 |
| For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004  |
|  |

[ ] TRANSITION REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from \_\_\_\_\_\_ to \_\_\_\_\_

Commission File Number 00-26599

## SIMEX TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

(Name of small business issuer in its charter)

Delaware (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

58-2465647

(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

4545 Wieuca Road, Bldg 2

Atlanta, Georgia 30342

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

| Issuer s telephone number: (404) 236-0134   |
|---|
| Securities registered under Section 12(b) of the Exchange Act:  |
| Common Stock, \$0.001 par value   |
| Title of Class  |
| Securities registered under Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act: None   |
| Check whether the issuer (1) filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act during the past 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes No X  |
| Check if there is no disclosure of delinquent filers in response to Item 405 of Regulation S-B contained in this form, and no disclosure will be contained, to the best of registrant s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-KSB or any amendment to this Form 10-KSB. Yes X No |
| Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes X No   |
| The issuer s revenues for its most recent fiscal year: \$0.   |
|   |
| 1{A0042073.DOC}   |

The aggregate market value of the shares of Common Stock held by non-affiliates of the Registrant, as of October 31, 2007 was \$11,776,143 based upon the closing price of \$0.86 per share as reported by the trading and market services of the Pink Sheets.

As of October 31, 2007, the Registrant had outstanding 29,026,929 shares of its Common Stock.

Transitional Small Business Disclosure Format (check one): Yes [\_\_]; No [X]

2

## **Table of Contents**

|                 |   | Page No |
|-----------------|---|---------|
| Part I          |   |         |
| Item 1.         | Description of Business   | 4       |
| Item 2.         | Description of Property   | 8       |
| Item 3.         | Legal Proceedings   | 8       |
| Item 4.         | Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders   | 9       |
| Part II         |   |         |
| Item 5.         | Market for Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters and Small Business Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities                           | 9       |
| Item 6.         | Management s Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation   | 10      |
| Item 7.         | Financial Statements and Supplementary Data   | 12      |
| Item 8          | Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure  | 12      |
| Item 8A.        | Controls and Procedures   | 12      |
| Item 8A(T).     | Controls and Procedures   | 13      |
| Item 8B         | Other Information   | 13      |
| Part III.       |   |         |
| Item 9.         | Directors, Executive Officers, Promoters, Control Persons and<br>Corporate Governance; Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange<br>Act | 13      |
| Item 10.        | Executive Compensation  | 15      |
| Item 11.        | Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters  | 18      |
| Item 12         | Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence   | 20      |
| Part IV.        |   |         |
| <b>Item 13.</b> | Exhibits  | 20      |
| Item 14.        | Principal Accountant Fees and Services  | 21      |
|                 | Signatures  | 22      |
|                 | Exhibit Index   | 23      |
|                 | Financial Statements  | F-1     |

3

## Note Regarding Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-KSB contains "forward-looking statements." These forward-looking statements are based on our current expectations, assumptions, estimates and projections about our business and our industry. Words such as "believe," "anticipate," "expect," "intend," "plan," "may," and other similar expressions identify forward-looking statements. In addition, any statements that refer to expectations, projections or other characterizations of future events or circumstances are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those reflected in the forward-looking statements. You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which relate only to events as of the date on which the statements are made. We undertake no obligation to publicly revise these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances that arise after the date hereof. You should refer to and carefully review the information in future documents we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

#### PART I

#### ITEM 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS.

Some of the information in this report may contain forward-looking statements. These statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as may, will, expect, anticipate, estimate, continue or similar work. These statements discuss future expectations, contain projections of results of operations or of financial condition or state other forward-looking information. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those discussed in such forward-looking statements (Cautionary Statements) include: the general strength or weakness of the Company s products, the industry, and the pricing policies of competitors. All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to the Company or persons acting on behalf of the Company are expressly qualified in their entirety by such Cautionary Statements.

#### Corporate History

SIMEX Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation together with its subsidiaries, is referred to herein as the Company. The Company s predecessor corporation was originally organized in 1983 with limited operations until its reorganization with SIMEX A/S, a Norwegian corporation, on April 28, 1998. Under the terms of the reorganization, the principal shareholders of SIMEX A/S became the majority shareholders of the Company, and SIMEX A/S became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. In April of 1999, the Company reincorporated as a Delaware corporation and changed its name to SIMEX Technologies, Inc.

#### Simex A/S Acquisitions and Divestitures

SIMEX A/S began operations in 1980 as an engineering and service company based in Stavanger, Norway. In May of 1998, SIMEX A/S acquired Norsk Kjoleindustri A/S (Norwegian Cooling Industries), which was an HVAC equipment design, manufacturer and maintenance organization that, among its products, manufactured and installed ice machines and other cooling equipment for a variety of applications. Subsequently from 1998 to 2001, SIMEX A/S completed a number of other acquisitions designed to complement its existing business. The acquisitions were intended to position the Company to compete with other engineering and construction companies and to expand its services to other markets. In 2002, the Company sold SIMEX A/S and Simex Capital, Inc., which constituted all of the Company s operations at the time.

Remote Business, Inc. Acquisition and Divestiture

Effective as of May 20, 2003, the Company completed a merger subject to certain terms to be complied with after May 20, 2003, under which it acquired all of the outstanding stock of Probity Investigations, Inc. ( Probity ), and ownership of Probity s wholly owned subsidiaries, Kyros, LLC (Kyros) and Remote Business Management, LLC (RBM). Under the terms of the reverse acquisition, a share exchange transaction occurred with the shareholders of Probity, which resulted in a change in the control of the ownership of Simex, with the shareholders of Probity becoming the controlling group.

On September 18, 2003, Simex executed a Mutual Rescission Agreement (the Rescission Agreement ) whereby it agreed with the Probity Shareholders to mutually rescind the May 20, 2003 reverse acquisition of Probity and return all parties to there respective positions as they existed prior to May 20, 2003. The basis for the Rescission Agreement was that Probity had not fulfilled all of its requirements under the May 20, 2003, reverse acquisition agreement

On December 5, 2003, the Company acquired Remote Business, Inc. (RBI), a newly-formed subsidiary of Probity, in exchange for 16,000,000 newly-issued shares of the Company s common stock. Immediately prior to the acquisition, Probity transferred security equipment inventory with a fair value of \$550,000 and the operations of its subsidiary, RBM, excluding all recorded assets and liabilities of RBM, to RBI. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase. Because the Company was a non-operating company at the time of the transaction and the common shares of the Company were thinly-traded, the purchase price was deemed to be the fair value of the assets acquired. Accordingly, no goodwill was recorded in the acquisition.

On August 31, 2004, the Company and Probity entered into a Memorandum of Understanding to rescind the purchase of RBI, and cancel a secured loan of \$35,000 that it had previously made to Probity. Probity agreed to return 500,000 shares of the Company s common stock pursuant to the Memorandum of Understanding. Pursuant to the Memorandum of Understanding, Probity took over ownership and management of RBI on September 7, 2004. The Company and Probity entered into a Mutual Rescission Agreement in February 2007 to memorialize Probity s takeover of ownership and management of RBI in September 2004. The Company and Probity amended the Mutual Rescission Agreement on August 13, 2007 to provide for the cancellation of an additional 14,300,000 shares of common stock that had been issued to Probity in the original transaction and to modify the indemnity provisions thereof.

Simex Data Systems, Inc.

Effective January 16, 2004, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Simex Digital Solutions, Inc. (SDS), entered into a marketing agreement with Structured Data Systems, Inc. (Structured Data), a Georgia corporation. Structured Data was a value-added reseller of computer hardware and software. Under the marketing agreement, SDS marketed products sold by Structured Data. In August 2004, SDS breached its obligations under the marketing agreement, and as a result Structured Data terminated SDS s rights thereunder by a notice dated August 3, 2004. SDS ceased operations shortly thereafter.

Red Alert, Inc.

On August 19, 2004, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Share Exchange with Red Alert Group, Inc., a Georgia corporation ("Red Alert"). Red Alert was a specialized consulting firm operating in the areas of homeland security, cyber security, and private military security. The Agreement and Plan of Share Exchange was amended and restated on August 27, 2004 (the "Exchange Agreement"). Under the terms of the Exchange Agreement, the Company agreed to issue 3,905,253 shares of its newly

5

designated Series A Preferred Stock in exchange for all of the issued and outstanding shares of the common stock of Red Alert. On August 30, 2004, C. Mickle Moye resigned as Chairman of the Company, and eight designees of Red Alert were appointed to the board. Also on August 30, 2004, Kjell I. Jagelid resigned as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and Timothy A. Holly was appointed President and Chief Executive Officer.

The Company subsequently determined that it could not acquire Red Alert by the issuance of its shares of Series A Preferred Stock in compliance with federal securities laws due to the size, nature and composition of the shareholders of Red Alert. As a consequence, the Company never issued any shares of Series A Preferred Stock to the shareholders of Red Alert, and therefore never completed the acquisition of Red Alert. On January 6, 2006, the Company and Red Alert entered into a Mutual Rescission Agreement, under which they mutually terminated the Agreement and Plan of Share Exchange. In connection with the Mutual Rescission Agreement, Kjell I Jagelid, and other shareholders holding a majority of shares, removed all of the designees of Red Alert on the board of directors of the Company resigned, and appointed Mr. Jagelid and Warren L. Traver directors of the Company.

#### Current Business of Company

Since the disposal of RBI in September 2004 and the termination of operations at SDS on August 3, 2004, the Company has been a public company with no operating activities. The Company therefore has no business segments, has no operations in any industry, does not sell any products or services, has no competition, has no requirements for raw materials, has no expenditures on research and development and has no employees.

### Management s Plans

Since the disposal of the Company s operations in 2004, the Company has been seeking an acquisition or merger candidate. The Company is seeking an operating company with a viable product or service that has growth potential. However, there is no assurance that the Company will be successful in raising capital or in locating a suitable acquisition candidate, or that the terms of any such transaction will be favorable to existing shareholders.

## Competition

The Company is and will continue to be a limited competitor in the business of seeking business opportunities with private companies. A large number of established and well-financed entities, including venture capital firms, are active in mergers and acquisitions of companies which may be desirable business opportunity candidates for us. Nearly all such entities have significantly greater experience and financial resources, technical expertise and managerial capabilities than us. Consequently, the Company will be at a competitive disadvantage in identifying possible business opportunities and successfully completing a business opportunity.

#### Government Regulation

The proposed business activities described herein classify the Company as a "blank check" company. Many states have enacted statutes, rules and regulations limiting the sale of securities of "blank check" companies in their states.

#### Risk Factors

An investment in the Company's shares are subject to the following risk factors:

NO REVENUE AND MINIMAL ASSETS. The Company has no revenues or earnings from operations. The Company has no significant assets or financial resources. The Company will, in all likelihood, sustain operating expenses without corresponding revenues, at least until the consummation of a business combination. This may result in the Company incurring a net operating loss which will increase continuously until the Company can consummate a business combination with a profitable business opportunity. There is no assurance that the Company can identify such a business opportunity and consummate such a business combination.

SPECULATIVE NATURE OF COMPANY'S PROPOSED OPERATIONS. The success of the Company's proposed plan of operation will depend to a great extent on the operations, financial condition and management of the identified business opportunity. While management intends to seek business combinations with entities having established operating histories, there can be no assurance that the Company will be successful in locating candidates meeting such criteria. In the event the Company completes a business combination, of which there can be no assurance, the success of the Company's operations may be dependent upon management of the successor firm or venture partner firm and numerous other factors beyond the Company's control.

SCARCITY OF AND COMPETITION FOR BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES AND COMBINATIONS. The Company is and will continue to be an insignificant participant in the business of seeking mergers with, joint ventures with and acquisitions of small private entities. A large number of established and well-financed entities, including venture capital firms, are active in mergers and acquisitions of companies that may be desirable target candidates for the Company. Nearly all such entities have significantly greater financial resources, technical expertise and managerial capabilities than the Company and, consequently, the Company will be at a competitive disadvantage in identifying possible business opportunities and successfully completing a business combination. Moreover, the Company will also compete in seeking merger or acquisition candidates with numerous other small public companies.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST - GENERAL. The officers and directors are associated with other firms and are involved in a range of business activities which may have business dealings with the Company at some point in time. Due to these affiliations and the fact that some officers are expected to devote only a portion of their time to the business of the Company, there are potential inherent conflicts of interest in their acting as directors and as officers. Each of the officers and directors is or may become an officer, director, controlling shareholder, partner or participant in other entities engaged in a variety of businesses. These existing and potential conflicts of interest are irreconcilable and could involve the participating officers and directors in litigation brought by the Company's shareholders or by the shareholders of other entities with which the officers and directors are currently, or may become, affiliated. To help alleviate this position somewhat, Management has adopted a policy of full disclosure with respect to business transactions with any entity in which any or all of the officers or directors are affiliated, either directly or indirectly. An officer or director may continue any business activity in which such officer or director engaged prior to joining the Company.

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS MAY DELAY OR PRECLUDE ACQUISITION. Section 13 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act"), requires companies subject thereto to provide certain information about significant acquisitions, including certified financial statements for the company acquired, covering one or two years, depending on the relative size of the acquisition. The time and additional costs that may be incurred by some target entities to prepare such statements may significantly delay or essentially preclude consummation of an otherwise desirable acquisition by the Company. Acquisition prospects that do not have or are unable to obtain the required audited statements may not be appropriate for acquisition so long as the reporting requirements of the 1934 Act are applicable.

LACK OF MARKET RESEARCH OR MARKETING ORGANIZATION. The Company has neither conducted, nor have others made available to it, results of market research indicating that market demand

7

exists for the transactions contemplated by the Company. Moreover, the Company does not have, and does not plan to establish, a marketing organization. Even in the event demand is identified for a merger or acquisition contemplated by the Company, there is no assurance the Company will be successful in completing any such business combination.

LACK OF DIVERSIFICATION. The Company's proposed operations, even if successful, will in all likelihood result in the Company engaging in a business combination with only one business opportunity. Consequently, the Company's activities will be limited to those engaged in by the business opportunity which the Company merges with or acquires. The Company's inability to diversify its activities into a number of areas may subject the Company to economic fluctuations within a particular business or industry and therefore increase the risks associated with the Company's operations.

REGULATION. Although the Company will be subject to regulation under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, management believes the Company will not be subject to regulation under the Investment Company Act of 1940, insofar as the Company will not be engaged in the business of investing or trading in securities. In the event the Company engages in business combinations that result in the Company holding passive investment interests in a number of entities, the Company could be subject to regulation under the Investment Company Act of 1940. In such event, the Company would be required to register as an investment company and could be expected to incur significant registration and compliance costs. The Company has obtained no formal determination from the Securities and Exchange Commission as to the status of the Company under the Investment Company Act of 1940 and, consequently, any violation of such Act would subject the Company to material adverse consequences.

PROBABLE CHANGE IN CONTROL AND MANAGEMENT. A business combination involving the issuance of the Company's common stock will, in all likelihood, result in shareholders of a private company obtaining a controlling interest in the Company. Any such business combination may require management of the Company to resign as members of the Board of Directors of the Company. The resulting change in control of the Company could result in removal of one or more present officers and directors of the Company and a corresponding reduction in or elimination of their participation in the future affairs of the Company.

REDUCTION OF PERCENTAGE SHARE OWNERSHIP FOLLOWING BUSINESS COMBINATION. The Company's primary plan of operation is based upon a business combination with a private concern which, in all likelihood, would result in the Company issuing securities to shareholders of such private company. The issuance of previously authorized and unissued common stock of the Company would result in reduction in percentage of shares owned by present and prospective shareholders of the Company and would most likely result in a change in control or management of the Company.

REQUIREMENT OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MAY DISQUALIFY BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES. Management of the Company believes that any potential business opportunity must provide audited financial statements for review, and for the protection of all parties to the business combination. One or more attractive business opportunities may choose to forego the possibility of a business combination with the Company, rather than incur the expenses associated with preparing audited financial statements.

#### ITEM 2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY.

We do not own or lease any property.

### ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

On December 14, 2004, Piedmont Center 15, LLC obtain a judgment against the Company for \$102,664.45 for amounts due by the Company under an office lease dated September 9, 2004. On

8

February 5, 2007, the Company and Piedmont Center 15, LLC entered into a Compromise and Settlement Agreement, under which the Company paid Piedmont Center 15, LLC \$25,000 in full settlement and satisfaction of any liability to Piedmont Center 15, LLC, including under the judgment entered on December 14, 2004.

#### ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2004, the Company did not submit any matters to a vote of security holders.

### **PART II**

## ITEM 5. MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

Our common stock is registered with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission under 12(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Our common stock trades on the Pink Sheets under the symbol SMXT. The following table summarizes the low and high prices for the Company s common stock for the years 2004 and 2003.

|                | <u>20</u>   | <u>04</u>  | <u>2003</u> |      |  |
|----------------|-------------|------------|-------------|------|--|
|                | <u>High</u> | <u>Low</u> | <u>High</u> | Low  |  |
| First Quarter  | n/a         | n/a        | 0.20        | 0.05 |  |
| Second Quarter | n/a         | n/a        | 0.70        | 0.20 |  |
| Third Quarter  | n/a         | n/a        | 0.60        | 0.25 |  |
| Fourth Quarter | n/a         | n/a        | 0.52        | 0.10 |  |

The high and low quotes on the Company's common stock reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, mark-down or commission and may not represent actual transactions. There were 202 shareholders of record of the common stock as of October 31, 2007. This number does not include an indeterminate number of shareholders whose shares are held by brokers in "street name."

The Company's common stock is subject to rules adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission ("Commission") regulating broker dealer practices in connection with transactions in "penny stocks." Those disclosure rules applicable to "penny stocks" require a broker dealer, prior to a transaction in a "penny stock" not otherwise exempt from the rules, to deliver a standardized disclosure document prepared by the Commission. That disclosure document advises an investor that investment in "penny stocks" can be very risky and that the investor's salesperson or broker is not an impartial advisor, but rather paid to sell the shares. The disclosure contains further warnings for the investor to exercise caution in connection with an investment in "penny stocks," to independently investigate the security, as well as the salesperson the investor is working with and to understand the risky nature of an investment in this security. The broker dealer must also provide the customer with certain other information and must make a special written determination that the "penny stock" is a suitable investment for the purchaser, and receive the purchaser's written agreement to the transaction. Further, the rules require that, following the proposed transaction, the broker provide the customer with monthly account statements containing market information about the prices of the securities. These disclosure requirements may have the effect of reducing the level of trading activity in the secondary market for the Company's common stock. Many

brokers may be unwilling to engage in transactions in our common stock because of the added disclosure requirements, thereby making it more difficult for stockholders to dispose of their shares.

The Company did not declare any cash dividends on its Common Stock during its fiscal years ended on December 31, 2004 or 2003. The board of directors of the Company has made no determination to date to declare cash dividends during the foreseeable future, but is not likely to do so. There are no restrictions on the Company's ability to pay dividends.

#### **Securities Issued in Unregistered Transactions**

During the quarter ended December 31, 2004, the Company did not issue any shares in unregistered transactions.

## **Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities**

During the quarter ended December 31, 2004, the Company did not repurchase any shares of its common stock.

ITEM 6. MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATION.

### **Disclosure Regarding Forward Looking Statements**

This Annual Report on Form 10-KSB includes forward looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (Forward Looking Statements ). All statements other than statements of historical fact included in this report are Forward Looking Statements. In the normal course of its business, the Company, in an effort to help keep its shareholders and the public informed about the Company s operations, may from time-to-time issue certain statements, either in writing or orally, that contain or may contain Forward-Looking Statements. Although the Company believes that the expectations reflected in such Forward Looking Statements are reasonable, it can give no assurance that such expectations will prove to have been correct. Generally, these statements relate to business plans or strategies, projected or anticipated benefits or other consequences of such plans or strategies, past and possible future, of acquisitions and projected or anticipated benefits from acquisitions made by or to be made by the Company, or projections involving anticipated revenues, earnings, levels of capital expenditures or other aspects of operating results. All phases of the Company operations are subject to a number of uncertainties, risks and other influences, many of which are outside the control of the Company and any one of which, or a combination of which, could materially affect the results of the Company s proposed operations and whether Forward Looking Statements made by the Company ultimately prove to be accurate. Such important factors ( Important Factors ) and other factors could cause actual results to differ materially from the Company s expectations are disclosed in this report. All prior and subsequent written and oral Forward Looking Statements attributable to the Company or persons acting on its behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the Important Factors described below that could cause actual results to differ materially from the Company s expectations as set forth in any Forward Looking Statement made by or on behalf of the Company.

### Plan of Operation

Since the disposal of the Company s operations in 2004, the Company has been seeking an acquisition or merger candidate. The Company is seeking an operating company with a viable product or service that has growth potential. However, there is no assurance that the Company will be successful in raising

capital or in locating a suitable acquisition candidate, or that the terms of any such transaction will be favorable to existing shareholders.

#### Results of Operations

#### Revenues

The Company's revenues from continuing operations in the year ended December 31, 2004 were \$0, as compared to \$53 in the year ended December 31, 2003. During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company had operating activities in the month of December at its RBI subsidiary. During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company had operations at its RBI subsidiary and its SDS subsidiary; however, it has classified those operations as discontinued operations because they were both disposed of in the year ended December 31, 2004.

## Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

The Company incurred selling, general and administrative expenses of \$1,183 in the year ended December 31, 2004, as compared to \$456 in the year ended December 31, 2003. The substantial increase in selling, general and administrative expenses was the result of a substantially greater level of business activity in 2004 attributable to operations at RBI and SDS and legal costs associated with the Company s agreement to acquire Red Alert. A substantial part of the selling, general and administrative expenses in 2004 was a non-cash expense of \$654 resulting from the issuance of 5,031,666 shares of common stock for services.

#### Other Income (Expense)

The Company incurred other income (expense) of (\$517) in the year ended December 31, 2004, as compared to other income of \$3 in the year ended December 31, 2003. In 2004, the other expense was largely attributable to a loss of (\$514) incurred in connection with the disposal of RBI and the cessation of operations at SDS during the period.

## Net Loss

During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company incurred a net loss of (\$1,755), or \$(0.05) per diluted weighted-average share. During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company reported a net loss of (\$429), or \$(0.02) per diluted weighted-average share. The increase in loss in 2004 as compared to 2003 was primarily due to excess general and administrative costs, particularly those incurred in connection with the acquisition of Red Alert and the issuance of 5,031,666 shares of common stock for services, operating losses at RBI and SDS, and nonrecurring losses associated with the disposition of RBI and SDS.

#### Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 2004, we had no assets, current liabilities of \$404, and a working capital deficit of (\$404).

The accompanying financial statements indicate that the Company has no liquidity, and requires additional capital to pay any of its liabilities. As a publicly traded company subject to ongoing reporting requirements with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), the Company will continue to incur significant expenses to maintain current reporting status with the SEC. These expenses are likely to

increase in coming periods based on more stringent reporting requirements and public oversight initiatives that have been or are being adopted by the SEC in response to corporate governance concerns and recent corporate scandals and abuses. Audit and professional fees will increase as a result of these changes and the increases will impact the profitability of the company in future periods.

The Company s plan is to locate an operating company with viable products or services that desires to go public by means of a reverse merger. There is no assurance that the Company will be able to find a suitable acquisition candidate.

#### Going Concern

The Company's financial statements have been presented on the basis that it is a going concern, which contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. As shown in the accompanying financial statements, the Company incurred net operating losses through the year ended December 31, 2004. These factors create an uncertainty about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The recent efforts by Company's management to raise additional operating capital were successful. The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern is dependent on their continued success in raising capital. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might be necessary if the Company is unable to continue as a going concern.

## **Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements**

The Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources that are material to investors.

#### ITEM 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

The financial statements required by Item 310 of Regulation S-B are attached hereto as Exhibit A.

# ITEM 8. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

On February 9, 2005, Miller Ray & Houser LLP, resigned as the Company s independent accounts. To the knowledge of current management, during the period that Miller Ray & Houser LLP, was engaged, it expressed no disagreements on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial disclosure, or auditing scope or procedures, which disagreements if not resolved to Miller Ray & Houser s satisfaction would have caused them to make reference in connection with their opinion to the subject matter of the disagreement. The audit report of Miller Ray & Houser on the Registrant s financial statements for the year ending 2003 did not contain any adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion, nor was it qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope or accounting principles. The Company did not consult with Miller Ray & Houser LLP regarding any matters or events set forth in Item 304(a)(2)(i) and (ii) of Regulation S-B.

On August 29, 2006, the Company retained Connolly, Grady and Cha, P.C. as its independent accountants. The Company did not consult with Connolly, Grady and Cha, P.C. with respect to any of the matters described in Item 304(a)(2)(i) and (ii)of Regulation S-B prior to its engagement.

### ITEM 8A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

12

Kjell I. Jagelid is both our chief executive officer and our chief financial officer, and is responsible for establishing and maintaining our disclosure controls and procedures. Mr. Jagelid evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of September 30, 2007. No evaluation was made as of December 31, 2004. In designing and evaluating our disclosure controls and procedures, he recognized that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives and management necessarily applied its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Based on this evaluation, he concluded that as of December 31, 2004, our disclosure controls and procedures were (1) designed to ensure that material information relating to the company, including our consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to our chief executive officer and chief financial officer by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report was being prepared and (2) effective, in that they provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Commission's rules and forms. Accordingly, Mr. Jagelid concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2004 were inadequate to ensure that information necessary to prepare and file timely reports required by the Exchange Act could be filed.

This quarterly report does not include a report of our management s assessment regarding internal control over financial reporting or an attestation report of our registered public accounting firm due to a transition period established by the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

ITEM 8A(T). CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Not applicable.

ITEM 8B. OTHER INFORMATION.

None.

#### **PART III**

ITEM 9. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, PROMOTERS, AND CONTROL PERSONS; COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 16(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT.

The following are our executive officers and directors and their respective ages and positions as of October 31, 2007:

| Name and Address   | <u>Age</u> | <u>Position</u>                                     |  |  |  |
|--|------------|---|--|--|--|
| Kjell I. Jagelid   | 64         | Chairman and CEO                                    |  |  |  |
| Warren L. Traver   | 62         | Executive Vice President, General Counsel, Director |  |  |  |
| Below are biographies of our executive officers as of February 20, 2007: |            |   |  |  |  |

*Kjell I. Jagelid*. Director and President since December 2000. Since January 2002, Mr. Jagelid has also been chief financial officer of Skilstaf, AG in Zurich, Switzerland, which is in the employee leasing business in Europe. Mr. Jagelid has over 20 years experience in manufacturing and construction. Mr. Jagelid invented equipment and processes used in the Company s former post-tensioning

construction segment and holds approximately fifteen patents in the manufacturing and construction industries. Mr. Jagelid has been employed by the Company on various occasions since the 1980 s. Mr. Jagelid graduated from PHF, Goteborg, Sweden with a Bachelor s Degree in Finance and obtained the equivalent of a Master s Degree in Civil and Mechanical Engineering. Mr. Jagelid is fluent in Swedish, English and the Scandinavian languages and is conversational in German.

*Warren L. Traver*. Mr. Traver has been instrumental in restructuring the Company and has become part of the management team with responsibilities including mergers, acquisitions and legal matters. In addition to serving as a director of the Company, Mr. Traver has been engaged in the private practice of law with emphasis in corporate finance and securities regulation since 1970. Mr. Traver received a B.A. degree from the University of the South and a J.D. from Mercer University. Mr. Traver is a member of the State Bar of Georgia and the Florida Bar.

There are no family relationships among any of the officers or directors of the Company.

None of the above directors and executive officers have been involved in any legal proceedings as listed in Regulation S-B, Section 228.401(d).

#### **Board Of Directors**

Our board currently consists of two directors. The current directors are Mr. Jagelid and Mr. Traver. Our directors hold office until the next annual meeting of the shareholders and until their successor(s) have been duly elected or qualified.

There have been no material changes to the procedures by which security holders may recommend nominees to the board of directors.

### **Board Committees**

We do not currently have an audit committee, or any other committee. Further, our board does not have an audit committee financial expert, and neither of our two directors would qualify as an audit committee financial expert, as defined by SEC regulations, because they lack the necessary qualifications. After we complete a reverse merger, we expect that the Company will seek a candidate to serve in this role.

### Section 16(a) Compliance

The members of the Company s Board of Directors, its executive officers and holders of 10% or more of its outstanding common stock are subject to the reporting requirements of Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, which require them to file reports with respect to their ownership of the Company s common stock and their transactions in such common stock. Based upon (1) the copies of Section 16(a) reports that the Company received from such persons for transactions in the common stock and their common stock holdings for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, and (2) the written representations received from one or more of such persons that no annual Form 5 reports were required to be filed by them for such period. The Company believes that all reporting requirements under Section 16(a) for such period were met in a timely manner by its executive officers, Board members and greater than 10% shareholders, except as described herein.

•

Mr. Jagelid failed to file a Form 4 reporting the granting of a stock option for 1,000,000 shares of the common stock of the Company on January 4, 2004.

14

•

Mr. C. Mickle Moye failed to timely file a Form 4 reporting the granting of a stock option for 500,000 shares of the common stock of the Company on January 4, 2004.

•

On August 30, 2004, the Company and Red Alert entered into a Share Exchange Agreement, pursuant to which Mr. Moye resigned as a director, Mr. Jagelid resigned as an officer, and the following persons were appointed to the following positions: Timothy A. Holly (Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer), James P. Brown (Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer, Director), William H. Swift (Executive Vice President, Director), Jerome C. Irons (Executive Vice President, Chief Information Security Officer, Director), Roel P. Verseveldt (Executive Vice President, Director), Cecil P. Brown (Executive Vice President, Director), Dwight D. Ellison (Director), and Nicholas J. Coolidge (Director). None of these individuals filed a Form 3 reporting their status as officers, directors or ten percent shareholders as of August 30, 2004.

### **Code of Ethics**

Prior management of the Company adopted a Code of Ethics, which is set forth in a Form 8-K filed with the Securities & Exchange Commission on April 1, 2005. We will provide a copy of the Code of Ethics without charge upon written request directed to the Company, Attn: Secretary, 4545 Wieuca Road, Bldg 2, Atlanta, Georgia 30342.

#### ITEM 10. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

No executive officer, director or other individual received compensation of more than \$100,000 for the prior fiscal year.

|      |  |  | All Other   |
|------|--|--|---|
|      |  |  | Compensation  |
|      |  | Options awards   |   |
| Year | Salary \$  | (\$)   | (\$)  |
| 2004 | 0  | 0  | 5,000   |
| 2003 | 0  | 0  | 12,000  |
| 2002 | 0  | 0  | 153,700   |
| 2004 | 0  | 0  | 0   |
| 2003 | 0  | 0  | 0   |
| 2002 | 125,000  | 0  | 0   |
| 2004 | 0  | 0  | 0   |
| 2003 | 0  | 0  | 0   |
| 2002 | 0  | 0  | 0   |
|      | 2004<br>2003<br>2002<br>2004<br>2003<br>2002<br>2004<br>2003 | 2004 0<br>2003 0<br>2002 0<br>2004 0<br>2003 0<br>2002 125,000<br>2004 0<br>2004 0<br>2003 0 | Year       Salary \$       (\$)         2004       0       0         2003       0       0         2002       0       0         2004       0       0         2003       0       0         2002       125,000       0         2004       0       0         2003       0       0         2004       0       0         2003       0       0 |

(1)

A 11 O41.

Mr. Jagelid was elected President, Chief Executive Officer and Director in December 2000 and resigned as President and Chief Executive Officer in September 2004. Mr. Jagelid was reappointed President and Chief Executive Officer in January 2006. Mr. Jagelid s other compensation for 2002 consisted primarily of professional fees for his negotiation of the sale of the Company s Norwegian subsidiary. Mr. Jagelid s other compensation for 2003 and 2004 consisted of director s fees.

(2)

Mr. Lunde resigned his position in July 2002, upon the sale of the Company s Norwegian

15

subsidiary.

(3)

Mr. Holly was appointed President and Director in August 2004, and resigned in January 2006.

The Company did not make any award to any executive officer under any long-term incentive plan in the last fiscal year. The Company did not reprice any options or stock appreciation rights during the last fiscal year.

The Company does not have any contract, agreement, plan or arrangement with any of the named executive officers providing for the payment of retirement benefits, or any payment(s) to the named executive officer following his resignation, retirement or other termination, or a change of control or a change in the executive officer s responsibilities following a change of control.

16

## **Outstanding Equity Awards At Fiscal Year End**

The following table sets forth information concerning all unexercised options, unvested stock awards, and equity incentive plan awards for each named executive officer as of December 31, 2004.

|          | Option Awards |               |               |            |            |          | Stoc                  | k Awards                               |   |
|----------|---------------|---------------|---------------|------------|------------|----------|-----------------------|--|---|
|          |               |               |               |            |            |          | Market<br>Value<br>of | Equity<br>Incentive<br>Plan<br>Awards: | Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Market or |
|          |               |               | <b>Equity</b> |            |            | Number   | Shares                | Number                                 | Payout                                  |
|          |               |               | Incentive     |            |            | of       | or                    | of                                     | Value of                                |
|          |               |               | Plan          |            |            | Shares   | Units                 | Unearned                               | Unearned                                |
|          |               |               | Awards:       |            |            | or Units | of                    | Shares,                                | Shares,                                 |
|          | Number of     | Number of     | Number of     |            |            | of Stock |                       | Units or                               | Units or                                |
|          | Securities    | Securities    | Securities    |            |            | That     | That                  | Other                                  | Other                                   |
|          | Underlying    | Underlying    | Underlying    |            |            | Have     | Have                  | Rights                                 | Rights                                  |
|          | Unexercised   | Unexercised   | Exercised     | Option     | Option     | Not      | Not                   |  | That Have                               |
|          | Options (#)   | Options (#)   | Unearned      |            | Expiration |          | Vested                | Not                                    | Not                                     |
| Name     | Exercisable   | Unexercisable | Options (#)   | Price (\$) | Date       | (#)      | (\$)                  | Vested (#)                             | Vested (\$)                             |
| Kjell I. | 1,731,115     |               |               | \$0.05     | 5/20/13    |          |                       |  |   |
| Jagelid  |               |               |               |            |            |          |                       |  |   |
| Kjell I. | 1,000,000     |               |               | \$0.35     | 1/10/14    |          |                       |  |   |
| Jagelid  |               |               |               |            |            |          |                       |  |   |

(1) Mr. Jagelid voluntarily cancelled all options held by him in 2007.

### **Director Compensation**

The following table sets forth information concerning the compensation of directors during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004:

|                       | Fees             |        |             | Non-Equity            | Nonqualified  |              |            |
|-----------------------|------------------|--------|-------------|-----------------------|---------------|--------------|------------|
|                       | Earned or        | Stock  |             | <b>Incentive Plan</b> | Deferred      | All Other    |            |
|                       | Paid in          | Awards | Option      | Compensation          | Compensation  | Compensation |            |
| Name                  | <b>Cash</b> (\$) | (\$)   | Awards (\$) | (\$)                  | Earnings (\$) | (\$)         | Total (\$) |
| Kjell I. Jagelid (1)  | \$5,000          |        | \$0         |                       |               |              |            |
| C. Mickle<br>Moye (1) | \$9,000          |        | \$0         |                       |               |              |            |

(1)

On January 10, 2004, Mr. Jagelid and Mr. Moye received options to purchase 1,000,000 shares and 500,000 shares of common stock, respectively, for \$0.35 per share. The options had a term of 10 years. The Company did not record any expense in connection with the issuance of the options under accounting rules in effect at the time.

(2)

Prior to the Red Alert transaction on August 30, 2004, the Company s policy was to pay outside directors \$1,500 per month for monthly meetings. Other directors received no cash remuneration for serving on the Board of Directors but are reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred by them in attending Board and Committee meetings. Since August 30, 2004, our Company does not have a compensation policy for directors.

## **Employment Agreements**

As of December 31, 2004, we did not have employment agreements with any of our executive officers.

#### ITEM 11. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT.

The following table contains information about the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of October 31, 2007, for:

- (i) each person who beneficially owns more than five percent of our common stock;
- (ii) each of our directors;
- (iii) the named executive officers; and
- (iv) all directors and executive officers as a group.

As used in the table below and elsewhere in this report, the term *beneficial ownership* with respect to a security consists of sole or shared voting power, including the power to vote or direct the vote and/or sole or shared investment power, including the power to dispose or direct the disposition, with respect to the security through any contract, arrangement, understanding, relationship, or otherwise, including a right to acquire such power(s) during the next 60 days following the date of this report. Except as otherwise

indicated, the shareholders listed in the table have sole voting and investment powers with respect to the shares indicated.

| Name and Address of Beneficial Owner  | Common Stock Beneficially Owned | (1)   |
|---------------------------------------|---------------------------------|-------|
| Kjell I. Jagelid (2)                  | 12,896,500                      | 44.4% |
| 140 South Falcon Bluff                |                                 |       |
| Alpharetta, Georgia 30022             |                                 |       |
| Elmer Lunde (3)                       | 2,069,779                       | 7.1%  |
| Roaldsoyveien 44                      |                                 |       |
| 4085 Hundvag Norway                   |                                 |       |
| Warren L. Traver (4)                  | 367,500                         | 1.0%  |
| 4545 Wieuca Rd., Building 2           |                                 |       |
| Atlanta, Georgia 30342                |                                 |       |
| All Officers and Directors as a Group | 13,264,000                      | 45.7% |
| (1)                                   |                                 |       |

Based upon 29,026,929 shares issued and outstanding as of October 31, 2007.

(2)

Mr. Jagelid s ownership consists of 3,596,500 shares of common stock owned outright, and 9,300,000 shares held by an entity that has agreed to resell the shares back to the Company for \$15,000.

(3)

Mr. Lunde s ownership consists of 314,779 shares of common stock owned outright, and 1,755,000 shares owned by Montain Sebring General Holding, S.A., which he controls.

(4)

Mr. Traver s shares consist of 367,500 shares owned by the Traver Family Trust, of which he is trustee, and of which he has sole voting and dispositive power.

## **Equity Compensation Plan Information**

In November 1999, the Company s board of directors approved a stock based compensation plan (Plan) under which shares or options can be granted to employees, directors and consultants. The Plan reserved for issuance 1,923,600

shares of the Company s common stock for its employees, directors and consultants. In July 2003, the Board of Directors approved an amendment to the Plan to reserve up to 20% of the total outstanding shares. The Company accounted for the cost of all options issued under the Plan using the intrinsic value method of accounting prescribed by APB Opinion No. 25 Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.

The following table presents the summary information relative to the Company s equity compensation plan as of December 31, 2004:

19

| Plan Category  | Number of securities<br>to be issued upon<br>exercise of outstanding<br>options, warrants and<br>rights (a) |      | Number of securities<br>remaining available<br>for future issuance (c) |
|--|---|------|--|
| Equity compensation plans approved by security holders     | 0   | 0    | 0  |
| Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders | 5,712,229   | 0.17 | 1,962,165  |

ITEM 12. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

### **Related Party Transactions**

During the last two years from the date of this report, the Company has engaged in the following related transactions as described in Item 404 of Regulation S-B:

From time to time, Mr. Jagelid has paid bills on behalf of the Company. Any funds advanced by Mr. Jagelid constitute unsecured demand loans that do not bear interest. As of October 31, 2007, the amount advanced by Mr. Jagelid during the last two years was \$47,626.45. In addition, as of October 31, 2007, Mr. Jagelid was owed \$6,420.26 for expenses incurred by him in 2004.

As of October 31, 2007, the Company was indebted to Mr. Jagelid in the amount of \$30,000 for overpayments made by him in 2004 on a note payable by him in the original principle amount of \$560,000.

In 2005, Mr. Jagelid purchased 9,300,000 shares of common stock originally issued to Probity Investigations, Inc. on December 5, 2003 in connection with the Company s purchase of Remote Business Management, LLC. The purchase price was \$15,000. In connection with the rescission of the transaction, Mr. Jagelid agreed to surrender the shares for cancellation in return for reimbursement of the purchase price for the shares.

In 2004, Mr. Jagelid advanced the Company \$30,000. The advance is unsecured and does not bear interest.

### **Director Independence**

The Company has two directors, Kjell I. Jagelid and Warren L. Traver, neither of which is independent. The Company does not have any committees, and Messrs. Jagelid and Traver perform the functions of an audit, nominating and/or compensation committee.

**PART IV** 

ITEM 13. EXHIBITS.

20

Reference is made to the Index to Exhibits following the signature page to this report for a list of all exhibits filed as part of this report.

#### ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.

In the last two fiscal years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, we retained Miller, Ray & Houser, LLP and Connolly, Grady and Cha, P.C., respectively, as our principal accountants. We understand the need for our principal accountants to maintain objectivity and independence in their audit of our financial statements. To minimize relationships that could appear to impair the objectivity of our principal accountants, our board has restricted the non-audit services that our principal accountants may provide to the Company primarily to tax services and audit related services. The Company is only to obtain non-audit services from our principal accountants when the services offered by our principal accountants are more effective or economical than services available from other service providers, and, to the extent possible, only after competitive bidding. The board has adopted policies and procedures for pre-approving work performed by our principal accountants.

After careful consideration, the board has determined that payment of the audit fees is in conformance with the independent status of the Company's principal independent accountants.

Audit Fees: The aggregate fees billed for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004 for professional services rendered by the principal accountant for the audit of our annual financial statements and the review of financial statements included in our filed Form 10-QSB's is \$6,667 (based on \$20,000 for 2004, 2005 and 2006). The aggregate fees billed for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003 for professional services rendered by the principal accountant for the audit of our annual financial statements was \$52,390.

Audit-Related Fees: The aggregate fees billed for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 for assurance and related services by the principal accountant that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review for the audit or review of our annual financial statements and the review of financial statements and are not reported under the previous item, Audit Fees, was \$0 and \$0 respectively.

Tax Fees: The aggregate fees billed for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 for professional services rendered by the principal accountant for tax compliance and tax planning was \$0 and \$0, respectively.

All Other Fees: The aggregate fees billed for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 for products and services provided by the principal accountant other than the services reported above was \$0 and \$0, respectively.

21

#### **SIGNATURES**

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, hereunto duly authorized.

Simex Technologies, Inc.

Dated: November 19, 2007 /s/ Kjell I. Jagelid

Kjell I. Jagelid, Chief Executive Officer

In accordance with the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Registration Statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates stated.

Dated: November 19, 2007 /s/ Kjell I. Jagelid

Kjell I. Jagelid, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (Principle Executive Officer and Principle Financial

Officer)

Dated: November 19, 2007 /s/ Warren L. Traver

Warren L. Traver, Director

22

# Edgar Filing: SIMEX TECHNOLOGIES INC - Form 10KSB EXHIBIT INDEX

| Exhibit<br>Number | Description and Incorporation by Reference  |
|-------------------|---|
| 2.1               | Plan of Merger (1)  |
| 2.2               | Exchange Agreement with Probity Investigations, Inc. (2)  |
| 2.3               | First Amendment to Exchange Agreement with Probity Investigations, Inc. (3)   |
| 2.4               | Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Share Exchange between the Company and Red Alert Group, Inc. (4)   |
| 2.5               | Agreement and Plan of Merger between Simex Technologies, Inc., Simex CT Acquisition Corp., and College Tonight, Inc. (5)  |
| 3.1               | Certificate of Incorporation (1)  |
| 3.2               | By-Laws (1)   |
| 3.3               | Certificate of Designation of Series A Voting Convertible Preferred Stock (4)   |
| 4.1               | Form of Common Stock Certificate of the Company (1)   |
| 10.1              | Mutual Rescission Agreement with Probity Investigations, Inc. executed in February 2007 (6)   |
| 10.2              | Mutual Rescission Agreement with Probity Investigations, Inc. executed in August 2007 (6)   |
| 10.3              | Mutual Rescission Agreement with Red Alert Group, Inc. dated January 6, 2006 (6)  |
| 10.4              | Modification to Mutual Rescission Agreement with Red Alert Group, Inc. dated December 21, 2006 (6)  |
| 11**              | Statement re: computation of earnings per share   |
| 22*               | List of subsidiaries  |
| 23*               | Consent of Connolly, Grady & Cha, P.C.  |
| 31*               | Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer   |
| 32*               | Certification by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 |

23

- \* Filed herewith.
- \*\* Included within financial statements.
- (1) Incorporated by reference from our Registration Statement on Form 10-SB, filed with the Commission on September 14, 1999.
- (2) Incorporated by reference from our Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB, for the quarter ended September 30, 2003, filed with the Commission on November 14, 2003.
- (3) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 5, 2003, and, filed with the Commission on December 5, 2003.
- (4) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 19, 2004, and, filed with the Commission on September 3, 2004.
- (5) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 12, 2007, and, filed with the Commission on October 18, 2007.
- (6) Incorporated by reference from our Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB, for the quarter ended September 30, 2004, filed with the Commission on November 14, 2007.

24

### SIMEX TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

#### CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003

#### WITH AUDIT REPORT OF REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

F-1

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

| Audit Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm |      |
|---|------|
| Consolidated Financial Statements                             |      |
| Consolidated Balance Sheets                                   | F-4  |
| Consolidated Statements of Operations                         | F-5  |
| Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity                | F-6  |
| Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows                         | F-8  |
| Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements                    | F-10 |

F-2

# Edgar Filing: SIMEX TECHNOLOGIES INC - Form 10KSB REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To The Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Simex Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries
4545 Wieuca Road Bldg 2
Atlanta, Georgia 30342

We were engaged to audit the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Simex Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004, and the related consolidated statements of income, retained earnings, and cash flows for the year then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company s management.

Substantially all of the Company s consolidated subsidiaries books of original entry; the general and subsidiary ledgers; related account manuals; records such as work sheets and spreadsheets, computations, and reconciliations; as well as substantially all corroborating evidence in support of the subsidiaries financial statements could not be located. The records that remain are not sufficient to permit the application of auditing procedures that would be adequate for us to express an opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Since the Company was not able to provide evidence or corroborating evidence in support of the subsidiaries financial statements and we were not able to apply other auditing procedures to satisfy ourselves as to whether the subsidiaries financial statements are presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the scope of our work was not sufficient to enable us to express, and we do not express, an opinion on the consolidated financial statements referred to in the first paragraph.

/s/ Connolly, Grady & Cha, P.C.

Certified Public Accountants

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

November 11, 2007

F-3

# Edgar Filing: SIMEX TECHNOLOGIES INC - Form 10KSB SIMEX TECHNOLOGIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

#### CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

December 31, 2004

(in thousands)

#### **ASSETS**

| Total Assets  | 0        |
|---|----------|
| LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY   |          |
| Current liabilities:  |          |
| Accounts payable  | 312      |
| Accrued expenses  | 2        |
| Note payable  | 60       |
| Officer advance   | 30       |
| Total current liabilities   | 404      |
| Shareholders equity:  |          |
| Series A Convertible Preferred stock, \$0.001 par value, 3,905 shares authorized and issued with no shares outstanding (note 6) |          |
| Common stock, \$.001 par value. Authorized 50,000 shares; 38,372 shares   |          |
| issued and outstanding (note 6)   | 38       |
| Additional paid-in capital  | 10,903   |
| Accumulated deficit   | (11,249) |
| Treasury stock, 510 shares at cost  | (96)     |
| Total shareholders equity   | (404)    |
| Total liabilities and shareholders equity   | 0        |

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

F-4

# Edgar Filing: SIMEX TECHNOLOGIES INC - Form 10KSB SIMEX TECHNOLOGIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

#### CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands)

|  | <u>200</u> | <u>)4</u> | <u>2003</u> |
|--|------------|-----------|-------------|
| Revenues   |            | \$ -      | \$ 53       |
| Cost of goods sold   |            | -         | 29          |
| Gross Profit   |            | -         | 24          |
| Selling, general and administrative expenses                                       |            | 1,183     | 456         |
| Net loss from continuing operations before other income (expense) and income taxes |            | (1,183)   | (432)       |
| Other income (expense)   |            |           |             |
| Interest expense   |            | (3)       | -           |
| Interest income  |            | -         | 3           |
| Loss from disposal of subsidiaries   |            | (514)     | -           |
| Net other income (expense)   |            | (517)     | 3           |
| Net loss from continuing operations before income taxes                            |            | (1,700)   | (429)       |
| Income taxes   |            | -         | -           |
| Net loss from continuing operations  |            | (1,700)   | (429)       |
| Discontinued operations (see note 2)   |            |           |             |
| Net loss from discontinued operations net of income taxes                          |            | (55)      | -           |
| Net Loss   | (\$        | 1,755)    | (\$ 429)    |
| Loss per common share  | (\$        | 0.05)     | (\$ 0.02)   |

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

F-1

# Edgar Filing: SIMEX TECHNOLOGIES INC - Form 10KSB SIMEX TECHNOLOGIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

#### CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

## (in thousands)

|  | <u>2004</u> | <u>ļ</u> | <u>2003</u> |
|--|-------------|----------|-------------|
| Cash flows from operating activities                                       |             |          |             |
| Net Loss from continuing operations  | (\$         | 1,700)   | (\$ 429)    |
| Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities |             |          |             |
| Common stock issued for services   |             | 654      | -           |
| Changes in operating assets and liabilities                                |             |          |             |
| (Increase) decrease in:  |             |          |             |
| Accounts receivable  |             | -        | (45)        |
| Inventories  |             | -        | 24          |
| Prepaid expenses and other current assets                                  |             | -        | 1           |
| Increase (decrease) in:  |             |          |             |
| Officer advance  |             | 30       |             |
| Accounts payable   |             | 273      | 15          |
| Accrued expenses   |             | 2        | -           |
| Net cash used in operating activities                                      |             | (741)    | (434)       |
|  |             |          |             |
| Cash flows from investing activities                                       |             |          |             |
| Decrease (increase) in amounts due from affiliates                         |             | 220      | (227)       |
| Disposal of Remote Business, Inc.  |             | 561      | -           |
| Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities                        |             | 781      | (227)       |
| Cash flows from financing activities                                       |             |          |             |
| Net cash used by discontinued operations                                   |             | (55)     |             |
| Proceeds of notes payable  |             | 60       | -           |
| Purchase of treasury stock   |             | (65)     | -           |
| Net cash provided by financing activities                                  |             | (60)     | -           |
|  |             |          |             |
| Net change in cash and cash equivalents                                    |             | (20)     | (661)       |
| Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period                           |             | 20       | 681         |
| Cash and cash equivalents at end of period                                 | \$          | 0        | \$ 20       |
| Supplemental disclosure of cash flows information                          |             |          |             |
| Cash paid for interest continued operations                                |             | -        | -           |

| Cash paid for taxes continued operations       | -   | -   |
|--|-----|-----|
| Cash paid for interest discontinued operations | -   | -   |
| Cash paid for taxes discontinued operations    | -   | -   |
| Common stock issued for inventory              | -   | 550 |
| Common stock issued for services               | 654 | -   |

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

F-2

# Edgar Filing: SIMEX TECHNOLOGIES INC - Form 10KSB SIMEX TECHNOLOGIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

## CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

### FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 and 2003

(in thousands)

#### Common Stock

|                      | <u>Shares</u> | <u>Amou</u> | ·  | onal Paid<br>apital |     | mulated<br>eficit | Treas<br>Stoc | _    | Sharel | otal<br>nolder's<br>uity |
|----------------------|---------------|-------------|----|---------------------|-----|-------------------|---------------|------|--------|--------------------------|
| Balance at 12/31/02  | 16,656        | \$          | 17 | \$<br>9,720         | (\$ | 9,065)            | (\$           | 30)  | \$     | 642                      |
| Purchase of business | 16,000        |             | 16 | 534                 |     | -                 |               |      |        | 550                      |
| Exercise of options  | 775           |             | -  | -                   |     | -                 |               |      |        | -                        |
| Net loss             | -             |             | -  | -                   |     | (429)             |               |      |        | (429)                    |
| Balance at 12/31/03  | 33,340        |             | 33 | 10,254              |     | (9,494)           |               | (30) |        | 763                      |
| Shares issued        |               |             |    |                     |     |                   |               |      |        |                          |
| services             | 5,032         |             | 5  | 649                 |     |                   |               |      |        | 654                      |
| Shares repurchased   | -             |             |    |                     |     |                   |               | (66) |        | (66)                     |
| Net loss             | -             |             |    |                     |     | (1,755)           |               |      |        | (1,755)                  |
| Balance at 12/31/04  | 38,372        | \$          | 38 | \$<br>10,903        | (\$ | 11,249)           | (\$           | 96)  | (\$    | 404)                     |

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

F-1

# Edgar Filing: SIMEX TECHNOLOGIES INC - Form 10KSB SIMEX TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2004 and 2003

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND PRACTICES.

(A)

#### DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS.

SIMEX Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries (collectively, the Company ) was engaged at December 31, 2003 in the design, installation, servicing and monitoring of digital surveillance security systems for business and industry, through its acquisition of Remote Business, Inc. (RBI) on December 5, 2003 from Probity Investigations, Inc. (Probity). Prior to that date, and after the Company sold its two operating subsidiaries in 2002, the Company had no operating activities.

On August 31, 2004, the Company entered into a Memorandum of Understanding to rescind the purchase of RBI. Pursuant to the Memorandum of Understanding, Probity took over ownership and management of RBI on September 7, 2004. The Company and Probity entered into a Mutual Rescission Agreement in February 2007 to memorialize Probity s takeover of ownership and management of RBI in September 2004.

Effective January 16, 2004, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Simex Digital Solutions, Inc. (SDS), entered into a marketing agreement with Structured Data Systems, Inc. (Structured Data), a Georgia corporation. Structured Data was a value-added reseller of computer hardware and software. Under the marketing agreement, SDS marketed products sold by Structured Data. In August 2004, SDS breached its obligations under the marketing agreement, and as a result Structured Data terminated SDS s rights thereunder by a notice dated August 3, 2004. SDS ceased operations shortly thereafter.

Since the termination of operations at SDS on August 3, 2004 and the disposal of RBI in September 2004, the Company has been a public company with no operating activities. The Company s operating activities in 2004 are reported as discontinued operations (see Note 2).

(B)

#### PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of SIMEX Technologies, Inc. and its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

(C)

CASH EQUIVALENTS.

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and money market accounts. For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

(D)

#### GOODWILL.

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets , which was adopted by the Company effective January 1, 2002. Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives will no longer be

F-1

amortized, but will instead be tested periodically for impairment. SFAS No. 142 also requires that intangible assets with definite useful lives be amortized over their respective estimated useful lives to their estimated residual values, and reviewed periodically for impairment. The Company did not have any goodwill in 2003 or 2004.

(E)

#### IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS AND DISPOSAL OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS.

The Company accounts for long-lived assets in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. This Statement requires that long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.

(F)

#### INCOME TAXES.

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

(G)

#### RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, AND ADVERTISING.

There are no research, development or advertising costs for 2003 or 2004.

(H)

#### COMPREHENSIVE INCOME.

The Company applies the provisions of SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income. SFAS No. 130 establishes standards for reporting and presentation of comprehensive income and its components in a full set of financial statements. Comprehensive income consists of net income (loss) and foreign currency translation adjustment and is presented in the consolidated statements of shareholders—equity. The Statement requires only additional disclosures in the consolidated financial statements; it does not affect the Company—s financial position or results of operations.

(I)

#### FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENT.

The Company applies Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 52, Foreign Currency Translation (FAS 52) for its subsidiaries outside the United States. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign functional currencies are translated at the exchange rate as of the balance sheet date. Revenues, costs, and expenses are translated at the

weighted average exchange rate for the period. Translation adjustments are recorded as a separate component of other comprehensive loss.

F-2

**(J)** 

#### EARNINGS PER SHARE.

The Company applies the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 128, Earnings Per Share. Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the sum of (1) the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period, (2) the dilutive effect, if any, of stock options using the treasury stock method, and (3) dilutive effect, if any, of other potentially dilutive securities.

(K)

#### USE OF ESTIMATES.

Management of the Company has made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities to prepare these financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(2)

#### DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS.

In August 2004, SDS breached its obligations under the marketing agreement, and as a result Structured Data terminated SDS s rights thereunder by a notice dated August 3, 2004. SDS ceased operations shortly thereafter.

On August 31, 2004, the Company entered into a Memorandum of Understanding to rescind the purchase of RBI. Pursuant to the Memorandum of Understanding, Probity took over ownership and management of RBI on September 7, 2004. The Company and Probity entered into a Mutual Rescission Agreement in February 2007 to memorialize Probity s takeover of ownership and management of RBI in September 2004.

The Company's operations at SDS and RBI have been classified as discontinued operations. Unless otherwise indicated, information presented in the notes to the financial statements relates only to the Company s continuing operations.

(3)

#### RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS.

Associated with the search for an acquisition or merger candidate, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with a former officer of the Company. Under the agreement, the Company paid the former officer \$10,000 per month for the three month period January through March of 2003 to assist the Company in locating a suitable acquisition or merger candidate. If an acquisition or merger had been consummated, the former officer would have also received 500,000 shares of the Company s common stock.

In conjunction with the May 20, 2003, reverse acquisition agreement with Probity (Note 8), the Company had advanced Probity approximately \$530,000 as of December 31, 2003. Included in the \$530,000 advances were separate notes in the amounts of \$262,000 and \$137,000, which matured as of June 25, 2003. These notes are collateralized by inventory and carry interest at 10% per annum. Additional loans in the amount of \$131,000, made prior to December 31, 2003 are unsecured and not subject to interest.

F-3

The Company subsequently exchanged its notes and loans receivable, which totaled \$560,000 as of the date of the exchange, for inventory of Kyros, which consisted of video monitoring equipment purchased by Kyros from Wooju Communications Co., Ltd. (Wooju), a South Korean manufacturing company and a member of Kyros. At the request of Wooju, the equipment was immediately sold, on behalf of Simex, to Kjell Jagelid and Montain Sebring Generale Holding, S.A., a Luxembourg company related to the Company s CEO, Kjell Jagelid, for \$560,000, for further sale, in the amount of \$560,000, by Kjell Jagelid and Montain Sebring Generale Holding, S.A. to Wooju. The Company received from Kjell Jagelid and Montain Sebring Generale Holding, S.A., a partial payment on the sale of \$112,000 on September 11, 2003. Additional amounts totaling \$448,000 were paid by Wooju to Kjell Jagelid and Montain Sebring Generale Holding, S.A. between the transaction date and December 31, 2003, to be held by Kjell Jagelid and Montain Sebring Generale Holding, S.A. as agent for the Company. A total of \$255,000 of these additional proceeds have been remitted to the Company by Kjell Jagelid and Montain Sebring Generale Holding, S.A. during the fourth quarter of 2003, and a balance of \$193,000 remains held at December 31, 2003 for the Company by Kjell Jagelid and Montain Sebring General Holding, S.A. The balance was repaid in 2004.

In conjunction with the acquisition of RBI, the Company advanced \$35,000 to Remote Business Management, LLC to assist in meeting its short-term capital needs. After the acquisition of RBI from Probity on December 5, 2003, Probity continued to provide operational support to the Company. Included in amounts due from affiliates at December 31, 2003 is \$35,000 due from Probity less \$8,000 for operational support.

On August 31, 2004, the Company and Probity entered into a Memorandum of Understanding to rescind the purchase of RBI, and cancel a secured loan of \$35,000 that it had previously made to Probity. Probity agreed to return 500,000 shares of the Company s common stock pursuant to the Memorandum of Understanding. Pursuant to the Memorandum of Understanding, Probity took over ownership and management of RBI on September 7, 2004. The Company and Probity entered into a Mutual Rescission Agreement in February 2007 to memorialize Probity s takeover of ownership and management of RBI in September 2004. The Company and Probity amended the Mutual Rescission Agreement on August 13, 2007 to provide for the cancellation of an additional 14,300,000 shares of common stock that had been issued to Probity in the original transaction and to modify the indemnity provisions thereof.

From time to time, Kjell I. Jagelid, the Company s chief executive officer, has paid bills on behalf of the Company. Any funds advanced by Mr. Jagelid constitute unsecured demand loans that do not bear interest. As of December 31, 2004, Mr. Jagelid was owed \$6,420 for expenses incurred by him in 2004.

In 2004, Mr. Jagelid advanced the Company \$30,000. The advance is unsecured and does not bear interest.

(4)

#### NOTES PAYABLE.

At December 31, 2004, note payable consists of a note in the original principal amount of \$60,000 dated August 17, 2004. The note is unsecured, bears interest at 7% per annum until maturity and 12% per annum after maturity. The note matured on October 15, 2004. Because the funds were borrowed pursuant to a proposed transaction with Red Alert which was later rescinded, Red Alert agreed to assume responsibility for payment of the note, and has indemnified the Company from liability on the note.

(5)

#### INCOME TAXES.

Income taxes attributable to loss from continuing operations for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 differed from the amounts computed by applying the U.S. Federal income tax rate of 34% to loss from continuing operations before income taxes as a result of the following:

|   | 2004 | <u> </u> | <u>2003</u> |      |
|---|------|----------|-------------|------|
| Computed expected tax benefit   | (\$  | 597)     | (\$         | 146) |
| Increase in income taxes resulting from increase in valuation allowance for deferred tax assets |      | 597      |             | 146  |
|   | \$   | 0        | \$          | 0    |

The Company has deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisting of various income tax attributes (including net operating loss, capital loss and/or foreign tax credit carryforwards) which are fully offset by a deferred tax valuation allowance. These income tax carryforwards expire in varying amounts and years from 2004 to 2023. In assessing the recoverability of the deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. In the event of a change of control of the Company, these deferred income tax assets are subject to limitations and are expected to be significantly reduced.

(6)

#### COMMON STOCK, OPTIONS AND WARRANTS.

#### Preferred Stock

Pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Share Exchange with Red Alert executed on August 27, 2004, the Company agreed to issue 3,905,253 shares of its newly designated Series A Preferred Stock in exchange for all of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of Red Alert. In connection with the share exchange, the Company filed a Certificate of Elimination ("Certificate of Elimination") and Certificate of Designations, Powers, Preferences and Relative, Participating, Optional and Other Special Rights of the Series A Voting Convertible Preferred Stock ("Certificate of Designations"). The Certificate of Elimination eliminated the Company's old Series A Preferred Stock and Series B Preferred Stock, of which no shares were issued and outstanding. The Certificate of Designations designated 3,905,253 shares of the Company's authorized preferred stock as Series A Preferred Stock. Each share of the new Series A Preferred Stock would be convertible into thirty (30) shares of the Company's common stock upon the filing of an amendment to the Company's Certificate of Incorporation, which increases the authorized common stock of the Company to 500,000,000 shares. Each share of the new Series A Preferred Stock would be entitled to vote with the holders of the Company's common stock on all matters on which the holders of common stock are entitled to vote on an as-converted basis. Each share of new Series A Preferred Stock would be entitled to any dividends declared on the common stock on an as-converted basis, and shares its liquidations rights with the common stock on an as-converted basis.

The amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation was approved by the Board of Directors and a majority of the stockholders of the Company. However, the amendment was not filed because the Company did not file a definitive Schedule 14C Information Statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Subsequently, the Company determined that the issue of the shares

F-5

of Series A Preferred Stock to the shareholders of Red Alert would not be exempt from registration under the Securities Act. As a result, for that reason and others, the Company never issued any shares of Series A Preferred Stock to the shareholders of Red Alert, and formally rescinded and terminated the Exchange Agreement on January 6, 2006. As of December 31, 2004, and the date of this report, there were no shares of Series A Preferred Stock outstanding.

#### Common Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 50,000,000 shares of \$0.001 par value common stock, of which 37,871,969 shares were issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2004.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company issued 5,031,666 shares of common stock for services rendered, or to be rendered. The shares were valued at \$0.13 per share, which was the market price of the common stock on the date of issuance. The shares were registered under the Securities Act of 1933 pursuant to a registration statement on Form S-8 that was filed with the Securities & Exchange Commission on September 7, 2004.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company reacquired 500,000 shares of common stock from Probity in connection with the return of RBI to Probity. The reacquired shares were valued at \$0.13 per share, which was the market price of the common stock on the date of the reacquisition.

#### Common Stock Options

In November 1999, the Company s Board of Directors approved a stock option plan, which reserves for issuance 10% of the outstanding shares of the Company s common stock for its employees, directors and consultants. In July 2003, the Board of Directors also approved an amendment to the stock option plan to reserve up to 20% of the total outstanding shares.

On May 20, 2003, the Company entered into Stock Option Agreements with certain of its officers, directors and consultants, and issued options to purchase 6,499,287 shares in connection with the original acquisition of Probity. Options issued pursuant to these Agreements were exercisable for a period of 10 years from the date of issuance, at \$.05 per share. The Agreements were restated on July 25, 2003, and restated again on September 15, 2003, in connection with the rescission of the Probity acquisition transaction. These restatements resulted in the following option agreements:

| <u>Name</u>      | <u>Title</u>                         | Number of Options |
|------------------|--------------------------------------|-------------------|
| C. Mickle Moye   | Chairman of the Board of Directors   | 865,557           |
| Kjell I. Jagelid | Chief Executive Officer and Director | 1,731,115         |
| Scott Demerau*   | Director                             | 865,557           |
| Arnold E. Johns  | Consultant                           | 865,557           |
|                  | Total:                               | 4,327,786         |

<sup>\*</sup>Mr. Demerau exercised his options on December 5, 2003.

On January 10, 2004, the Board of Directors resolved to award options to its Officers, Directors and consultants, as follows:

F-6

| <u>Name</u>      | <u>Title</u>                         | Number of Options |
|------------------|--------------------------------------|-------------------|
| Kjell I. Jagelid | Chief Executive Officer and Director | 1,000,000         |
| C. Mickle Moye   | Chairman of the Board of Directors   | 500,000           |
| Arnold E. Johns  | Consultant                           | 500,000           |
| Fred J. Griffin  | Consultant                           | 250,000           |
|                  | Total:                               | 2,250,000         |

These options are exercisable for a period of 10 years, at a price equal to \$.35 per share.

In October 1995, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock Based Compensation, effective for the Company beginning January 1, 1996. SFAS No. 123 defines a fair value method of accounting for employee stock options. It also allows accounting for such options under the intrinsic value method in accordance with Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees and related interpretations. If a company elects to use the intrinsic value method, then pro forma disclosures of earnings and earnings per share are required as if the fair value method of accounting was applied. The effects of applying SFAS No. 123 in the pro forma disclosures are not necessarily indicative of future amounts. Additionally, the Company is expected to grant additional awards in future years.

The Company has elected to account for its stock options under the intrinsic value method outlined in APB No. 25.

The fair value method requires use of option valuation models, such as The Black-Scholes option valuation model, to value employee stock options, upon which a compensation expense is based. The Black-Scholes option valuation model was not developed for use in valuing employee stock options. Instead, this model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options, which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility. Because the Company s stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, it is management s opinion that the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable measure of the fair value of its employee stock options. Under the intrinsic value method, compensation expense is only recognized if the exercise price of the employee stock option is less than the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant.

The following table presents the status of the Company s stock option plan for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003.

| Outstanding at December 31, 2002 | -         |
|----------------------------------|-----------|
| Granted                          | 4,327,786 |
| Exercised                        | 865,557   |
| Forfeited or Cancelled           | -         |
| Outstanding at December 31, 2003 | 3,462,229 |
| Granted                          | 2,250,000 |
| Exercised                        | -         |
| Forfeited or Cancelled           | -         |

| Outstanding at December 31, 2004 | 5,712,229 |
|----------------------------------|-----------|
|                                  |           |

F-7

(7)

#### LOSS PER SHARE.

The Company applies the provisions of Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 128, Earnings per Share. Basic loss per common share is based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted loss per share excludes the dilutive effect of common stock equivalents. For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the dilutive effect of 5,712,229 and 3,462,239 options, respectively, which comprise common stock equivalents for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, has not been presented because their effect would have been anti-dilutive. The Company s weighted average shares outstanding utilized for both basic and diluted per share computations for 2004 and 2003 was 38,892,967 and 17,806,000, respectively.

(8)

#### ACQUISITIONS.

Remote Business, Inc. Acquisition and Divestiture

Effective as of May 20, 2003, the Company completed a reverse acquisition subject to certain terms to be complied with after May 20, 2003, under which it acquired all of the outstanding stock of Probity and correspondingly ownership of Probity s wholly owned subsidiaries, Kyros, LLC (Kyros) and Remote Business Management, LLC (RBM). Under the terms of the reverse acquisition, a share exchange transaction occurred with the shareholders of Probity, which resulted in a change in the control of the ownership of Simex, with the shareholders of Probity becoming the controlling group.

On September 18, 2003, Simex executed a Mutual Rescission Agreement (the Rescission Agreement ) whereby it agreed with the Probity Shareholders to mutually rescind the May 20, 2003 reverse acquisition of Probity and return all parties to there respective positions as they existed prior to May 20, 2003. The basis for the Rescission Agreement was that Probity had not fulfilled all of its requirements under the May 20, 2003, reverse acquisition agreement. As a result of the Rescission Agreement, the financial presentation in this Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 2003, does not include the balance sheet positions of Probity as of December 31, 2003 or the operating results of Probity for any period presented in this Form 10-KSB. The only evidence of the reverse acquisition with Probity is represented by loans made by the Company to Probity, which are included on the Company s December 31, 2003 balance sheet of \$35,000 in amounts due from affiliates. For financial statement presentation, the May 20, 2003, reverse acquisition agreement is treated as if it were not executed.

On December 5, 2003, the Company acquired Remote Business, Inc. (RBI), a newly-formed subsidiary of Probity, in exchange for 16,000,000 newly-issued shares of the Company s common stock. Immediately prior to the acquisition, Probity transferred security equipment inventory with a fair value of \$550,000 and the operations of its subsidiary, RBM, excluding all recorded assets and liabilities of RBM, to RBI. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase. Because the Company was a non-operating company at the time of the transaction and the common shares of the Company are thinly-traded, the purchase price was deemed to be the fair value of the assets acquired. Accordingly, no goodwill was recorded in the acquisition.

Supplemental pro-forma disclosures of the results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, as though the acquisition of RBI had been completed as of January 1, 2002 are as follows:

F-8

|                         | 2003 |       | 2002 |         |
|-------------------------|------|-------|------|---------|
| Revenue                 | \$   | 631   | \$   | 676     |
| Net Loss                |      | (392) |      | (4,665) |
| Diluted Loss per Share* | (\$  | 0.01) | (\$  | 0.14)   |

<sup>\*</sup>Diluted loss per share is calculated based on 32,622 and 32,555 diluted ordinary shares for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

On August 31, 2004, the Company and Probity entered into a Memorandum of Understanding to rescind the purchase of RBI, and cancel a secured loan of \$35,000 that it had previously made to Probity. Probity agreed to return 500,000 shares of the Company s common stock pursuant to the Memorandum of Understanding. Pursuant to the Memorandum of Understanding, Probity took over ownership and management of RBI on September 7, 2004. The Company and Probity entered into a Mutual Rescission Agreement in February 2007 to memorialize Probity s takeover of ownership and management of RBI in September 2004. The Company and Probity amended the Mutual Rescission Agreement on August 13, 2007 to provide for the cancellation of an additional 14,300,000 shares of common stock that had been issued to Probity in the original transaction and to modify the indemnity provisions thereof.

#### Simex Data Systems, Inc.

Effective January 16, 2004, SDS, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a marketing agreement with Structured Data. Structured Data was a value-added reseller of computer hardware and software. Under the marketing agreement, SDS marketed products sold by Structured Data. In August 2004, SDS breached its obligations under the marketing agreement, and as a result Structured Data terminated SDS s rights thereunder by a notice dated August 3, 2004. SDS ceased operations shortly thereafter.

#### Red Alert, Inc.

On August 19, 2004, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Share Exchange with Red Alert Group, Inc., a Georgia corporation ("Red Alert"). Red Alert was a specialized consulting firm operating in the areas of homeland security, cyber security, and private military security. The Agreement and Plan of Share Exchange was amended and restated on August 27, 2004 (the "Exchange Agreement"). Under the terms of the Exchange Agreement, the Company agreed to issue 3,905,253 shares of its newly designated Series A Preferred Stock in exchange for all of the issued and outstanding shares of the common stock of Red Alert. On August 30, 2004, C. Mickle Moye resigned as Chairman of the Company, and eight designees of Red Alert were appointed to the board. Also on August 30, 2004, Kjell I. Jagelid resigned as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and Timothy A. Holly was appointed President and Chief Executive Officer.

The Company subsequently determined that it could not acquire Red Alert by the issuance of its shares of Series A Preferred Stock in compliance with federal securities laws due to the size, nature and composition of the shareholders of Red Alert. As a consequence, the Company never issued any shares of Series A Preferred Stock to the shareholders of Red Alert, and therefore never completed the acquisition of Red Alert. On January 6, 2006, the Company and Red Alert entered into a Mutual Rescission Agreement, under which they mutually terminated the Agreement and Plan of Share Exchange. In connection with the Mutual Rescission Agreement,

F-9

Kiell I. Jagelid, and certain other majority shareholders, removed all designees of Red Alert to the board of directors of the Company, and appointed Mr. Jagelid and Warren L. Traver directors of the Company.

(9)

#### FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS.

The carrying amounts for cash, trade accounts receivable, amounts due from affiliates and accounts payable approximate fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments.

(10)

#### MANAGEMENT S PLANS.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company was not engage in active operations, had no assets, and substantial current liabilities. The Company s plan is to settle its liabilities and find a suitable reverse merger candidate.

(11)

#### COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES.

On September 9, 2004, the Company entered into a lease agreement with Piedmont Center 15, LLC, which provided for monthly lease payments of \$17,340. As a result of the nonpayment of lease payments, Piedmont Center 15, LLC terminated the lease and sued the Company for amounts due under the lease agreement. On December 14, 2004, Piedmont Center 15, LLC obtain a judgment against the Company for \$102,664.45 for amounts due by the Company under an office lease dated September 9, 2004.

On February 5, 2007, the Company and Piedmont Center 15, LLC entered into a Compromise and Settlement Agreement, under which the Company paid Piedmont Center 15, LLC \$25,000 in full settlement and satisfaction of any liability to Piedmont Center 15, LLC, including under the judgment entered on December 14, 2004.

(12)

#### SUBSEQUENT EVENTS.

On January 6, 2006, the Company and Red Alert entered into a Mutual Rescission Agreement, under which the parties mutually terminated the Agreement and Plan of Share Exchange dated August 27, 2004. In connection with the Mutual Rescission Agreement, Kiell I. Jagelid, and certain other majority shareholders, removed all designees of Red Alert to the board of directors of the Company, and appointed Mr. Jagelid and Warren L. Traver directors of the Company. In December 2006, the Agreement was amended to provide, among things, for Red Alert would indemnify and hold the Company harmless against any claim or liability arising out of a note issued on August 17, 2004 for \$60,000 to pay for certain costs associated with the proposed acquisition of Red Alert by the Company.

The Company received loans from third parties in the following amounts on the following dates:

| Date              | Amount   |
|-------------------|----------|
| December 13, 2006 | \$75,000 |
| February 7, 2007  | \$42,000 |
| April 2, 2007     | \$35,000 |

| June 11, 2007 | \$25,000 |
|---------------|----------|
| June 14, 2007 | \$25,000 |

F-10

In June 2007, the Company repaid one lender \$20,000 in principal, plus accrued interest thereon. The loans are evidenced by notes that bear interest at 6% until maturity, 8% after maturity, and mature on November 30, 2007. The notes are convertible into common stock of the Company at a conversion price of \$0.05 per share.

On March 16, 2007, Lencola Sullivan-Verseveldt agreed to the cancellation of 1,600,000 shares of common stock issued to her in September 2004 for consulting services that were never performed.

On June 14, 2007, Antoon Theis agreed to the cancellation of 2,245,000 shares of common stock that he still owned out of 2,300,000 shares of common stock issued to him in September 2004 for consulting services that were never performed. As part of the cancellation, the Company paid \$16,700 to a bank that had a lien on Mr. Theis s shares to remove the lien on the shares.

In February 2007, the Company and Probity entered into a Mutual Rescission Agreement to memorialize the rescission of the Company is acquisition of RBI pursuant to a Memorandum of Understanding originally executed on August 31, 2004. On August 13, 2007, Probity and the Company entered into a new Mutual Rescission Agreement that modified the agreement signed in February 2007. The modified agreement provided for the cancellation of all shares of common stock originally issued by the Company to acquire RBI, other than 1,200,000 shares that had since been conveyed to a third party. Consequently, the Mutual Rescission Agreement resulted in the cancellation of 14,800,000 shares of common stock. In addition, the Company released Probity from liability on a loan in the amount of \$35,000 which the Company had made to Probity and indemnified Probity from certain tax liabilities. Of the shares to be cancelled, the Company has received 5,500,000 of the shares, and is obligated to reimburse Kjell I. Jagelid \$15,000 to obtain the remaining 9,300,000 shares.

On December 11, 2006, the Company and the following persons agreed to the cancellation of the following options:

| Kjell Jagelid   | 2,731,115 |
|-----------------|-----------|
| C. Mickle Moye  | 1,365,557 |
| Arnold E. Johns | 1,365,557 |
| Fred J. Griffin | 250,000   |

As a result of the cancellation of the options, the Company does not have any options outstanding.

On August 13, 2007, the Company entered into a letter of intent to acquire College Tonight, Inc. in a reverse merger. On October 12, 2007, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger with College Tonight, Inc. ( CT ). Under the Agreement, the Company agreed to acquire CT by the merger of CT with and into Simex CT Acquisition Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Material terms and conditions of the merger include:

•

CT will merge with and into Simex CT Acquisition Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and thereby become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;

•

The Company will issue 2,412,800 shares of a newly-created Series A Convertible Preferred Stock in exchange for all of the issued and outstanding shares of CT;

F-11

•

Prior to the merger, the Company must have settled all outstanding payables and notes, and caused certain outstanding notes to convert into common stock;

•

Prior to the merger, the Company must have obtained the cancellation of 18,645,000 shares of its common stock;

•

Prior to the merger, the Company must have filed all periodic reports required by Sections 13 or 15 of the Securities Exchange Act to bring the Company current on its reporting obligations;

•

Prior to the merger, the Company must have raised at least \$850,000 in a private offering to accredited investors;

•

As soon as practical after the merger, the Company will hold a shareholders meeting to approve a one for four reverse stock split, an increase of its authorized shares of common stock to 100,000,000, and a change of its name to College Tonight, Inc.;

•

Immediately after the one for four reverse split, each share of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock will automatically convert into 10 shares of the Company s common stock, resulting in the issuance of 24,128,000 additional shares of common stock.

The Company has commenced a private offering of common stock at \$0.10 per share. The maximum number of shares that may be sold in the offering is 16,500,000, for gross proceeds of \$1,650,000. All subscriptions will be held in escrow, and released only upon satisfaction of the following conditions:

•

the Company must have received subscriptions for a minimum amount of 8,500,000 shares, or gross proceeds of \$850,000;

•

the Company must have filed all periodic reports required by Sections 13 or 15 of the Securities Exchange Act to bring the Company current on its reporting obligations, and subscribers been given a chance to review same; and

•

the Company must have closed on the acquisition of CT on terms substantially the same as set forth in that Agreement and Plan of Merger between College Tonight, Inc., Simex CT Acquisition Corp., and the Company, including satisfaction of all conditions to closing set forth therein.

In 2006 and 2007, the Company has reached agreements with substantially all of its creditors to release or settle their claims against the Company.

F-12